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The charging party appeals fromthe dismssal of an unfair br actice
charge by the General Counsel of the Educati onal Enpl oyrment Rel ati ons Boar d.
On Novenber 4, 1976, darence A son, an individual enployee of the

Mount ai n Vi ew School District (District), filed an unfair practice charge
agai nst the District. As supplenented by two amendnents, the charge contains
four allegations and alleges the D strict violated Government Code Sections

3543.5, 3543.2, 3543.6 and 3543. 71 Wile the General Counsel served the

1Sec'. 3543.5 st ates;

It shall be unlawful for a public school enpl oyer to:

(a) I'mpose or threaten to inpose reprisals on enpl oyees,

to discrimnate or threaten to discrimnate agai nst enpl oyees,
or otherwise tointerfere with, restrain, or coerce enpl oyees
because of their exercise of rights guaranteed by this
chapter.

(b) Deny to enpl oyee organi zations rights guaranteed to
themby this chapter.

(c) Refuse or fail to neet and negotiate in good faith
with an excl usive representati ve.

(d) Domnate or interferewith the formation or adni ni s-
tration of an enpl oyee organi zation, or contribute
financial or other support toit, or in any way encourage
enpl oyees to join any organi zation in preference to
anot her.
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original charge upon the District, he subsequently disn ssed the charge
before the District was required to answer.
The first allegation of the charge states that the District violated
the terns of a "Menorandumof Understandi ng" executed on or about Septenber 22,
1976 by the Dstrict and the Mountai n Vi ew Teachers Associ ation. In addition
to providing for a salary increase the Menorandumof Understandi ng stated:
Ef fective Cctober 1, | 1976, the District shall provide

$l,487.00 per eligible enployee to be utilized in the
payment of premuns for;

A, Medical insurance
B, Dental insurance _
C. Tax sheltered annuity program

Al eligible enpl oyees nust utilize the stipulated
anount in the listed three areas.

The charging party alleged in essence that the above provisions neant that
an enpl oyee coul d apply the funds to any one or two or all of the three listed
prograns but woul d not be required to nake paynents into any of them

On or about Cctober 15, 1976, the charging party signed a "Muntain Vi ew
School District Benefit Sel ection Sheet" which allowed himto select the
programbenefits he desired, except that it contained the follow ng two
provi si ons:

Al'l enpl oyees are required to participate in the
Dstrict's Fanily Dental Programcosting $28. 97
tenthly. The bal ance $119, 73 may be used for

optional plans listed below [referring to the
nedi cal and annuity prograns].

and:

(conti nued)

(e) Refuse to participate in good faith in the inpasse
procedure set forth in Article 9 (comrencing with
Section 3548).

Sec. 3543.6, relating to unfair practices by an enpl oyee organi zati on, was
inproperly cited by the ¢charging party since he did not file the charge agai nst
an enpl oyee organi zati on.

Sec. 3543.2 defines the "scope of representation" in the negotiations
process. Section 3543.7 dictates the time that negotiations nmust begin.

Al'l statutory references hereafter are to the Governnent Code unl ess
ot her wi se not ed.
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| amprepared to forfeit additional district contributions
to.nmy tax sheltered annuity should | make any mjthdramal
fromthe annuity account ‘during ny enployment by the
district.
The charging party alleges that the District's requirenent in the Benefit
Sel ection Sheet that all enployees‘participate'in the dental programis, "An
Unfair Enmpl oyment Practice; Discrimnatory, Unconstitutional and not required
in [the Menorandumof Understanding]”; further, it is "...arbitrary and
capricious and unconstitutional under the first amendnent (religious freedon...";
and finally, there is "no authorization in state school lawfor...requiring
enpl oyees to participate in a nandatory dental plan."
The charging party alleges that the provision in the Benefit Sel ection
Sheet regarding the forfeiture of the annuity contribution is:

...an unfair enploynment practice, Is arbitrary
and capricious. Is discrimnatory.. |s unconstitu-
tional under the equal protection clause of the
fourteenth anendnent. Is illegal in that the

district purports to control the nmoneys rightfully

due the enpl oyee once in the enpl oyee's account.
He further alleges that the provisionis "...Unconstitutional and not required
in [the Menorandumof Understanding]...." and that there is "no authorization
in state school law for...Prohibiting enpl oyees fromw thdrawal s of TSA funds. ..
[or] Permtting a school district to refuse future TSA deposits if the enpl oyee
w t hdraws funds."

The second al | egation of the charge was the nere conclusory statenent that,
_ _ 2

"The respondent has allegedly violated Section 3543.7."
The third allegation is al so a conclusory statenent. Specifically, the

charging party stated:
After inpasse was declared [by the District] on Cctober 13,
1976, the respondent has all egedly provided heal th and
wel fare benefits without negotiating in good faith, therefore
di scrimnating agai nst enpl oyees pursuant to section 3543.5...

oy S
CGov. Code Sec. 3543, 7 provides:

The duty to neet and negotiate in good faith requires the
parties to begin negotiations prior to the adoption of
the final budget for the ensuing year sufficiently in
advance of such adoption date so that there is adequate
tinme for agreenent to be reached, or for the resol ution of
an i npasse. '
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Finally, the charging party all eges only the conclusion that the
Dstrict "has failed to adopt a grievance processi ng procedure pursuant to
Section 3543.2 and 3543.7."
In dismssing the charge, the General Counsel reasoned that:
...the anended charge does not state, with sufficient
particularity, any facts to support the allegations.
The al | egation that a grievance processing procedure
was not adopted does not state a cause of action under
t he Educati onal Enpl oynent Rel ations Act. The Educa-
tional Enployment Rel ations Board unfair practice
hearings are not the proper forumfor alleged violations
of "state school law'...or of the "equal protection
cl ause of the fourteenth anendrent..."
For the purpose of ruling on this appeal of the dism ssal, we assume that
the essential facts alleged in the charge are true.
As previously stated, the first allegation of the charge stated that
the D strict violated the Menorandumof Understanding. This action by the
Dstrict, if true, would not state an unfair practice under the Educati ona
Enpl oyment Rel ati ons Act - (EERA). Section 3541.5(b) provides
The Board has no authority to enforce agreenents between
the parties, and shall not issue a conplaint on any charge
based on al |l eged viol ati on of such an agreenent that woul d
not al so constitute an unfair practice under this chapter.
The charging party has alleged nothing nore in the first allegation than that
the District violated the terns of its agreement with the Association expressed
i n the Menorandumof Understanding. Nothing in the charge even hints that the
facts al so constitute an unfair practice under Section 3543.5. The charging
4
party al so all eged viol ations of "state school |aw' and the federa
Constitution, apparently independent of the unfair practice charge. The Board
is not the proper forumto decide such unrelated civil matters. Therefore,
the first allegation of the charge is dism ssed.
None of the remaining allegations of the charge state any facts to
'support the alleged violations. The Board remands these allegations to the
CGeneral Counsel who shall allowthe charging party an opportunity to anend the

3San Juan Feder ati on of Teachers, EERB Decision No, 12, March 10, 1977,
at page 4, = e . )
y!

The Board assumes the charging party has reference to "state schoo
| aw' ot her than the EERA
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charge within 30 ‘cal endar days after the filing of this decision. If the charging
party chooses to anend, he nust state the facts on which he bases hi s charge.

Furt her, he nust specify which subsection or subsections of Section 3543.5

have al | egedly been violated by the District with regard.to.each allegation of the
charge, Nonconpliance with Section 3543.2 or Section 3543,7 does not al one
constitute an unfair practice. Such nonconpliance nust be related to a

violation of a specific subsection or subsections of Section 3543.5.

The charging party has already tw ce amended the charge, yet still fails

to allege aviolation of Section 3543,5, The charging party may, within 10
| cal endar days after the filing of this decision, apply for Board assistance under
8 California Adninistrative Code Section 35006.°
denonstrates to the satisfaction of the General Counsel that he is unable to

If the charging party

retain counsel, or shows other extenuating circunstances, the General Counse
may assign a Board agent to assist the charging party in drafting the charge.
The charging party did not serve a copy of this appeal upon the respondent
Dstrict as.is required by 8 California Admnistrative Code Sections 35007(b)6
and 35002(b)7, Thus, the Dstrict did not have an opportunity to file the
statenent in opposition to the appeal allowed by 8 California Admnistrative

58 Cal. Adm Code Sec, 35006 provi des:

If the charging party is unable to retain counsel or
denonstrat es extenuating circunstances, as determ ned
by the Board, a Board agent nmay be assigned to assi st
such party to draft the charge or gather evidence.

8 Cal . Adm Code Sec. 35007 provides in pertinent part:

(b) The charging party may obtain reviewof the disnissa

by filing an appeal to the Board itself within ten cal endar
days after service of notice of dismssal. The appeal shall
be inwiting, signed by the party or its agent and contain
the facts and argunents upon whi ch the appeal is based.

8 Cal, Adm Code Sec. 35002 provides in pertinent part:

(b) An unfair practice charge, an application for joinder
and a petition to submt an infornational brief shall be
considered "filed" by a party when actual ly received by
the appropriate regional office. Al other docunments
referred to in these rules and regul ati ons shall be
considered "filed" by a party when actual ly received by
the appropriate regi onal office acconpani ed by proof of
servi ce of the docunent on each party.

6
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_ g _ S
Code Section 3500.7(c) , |If the charging party chooses to amend t he

charge, he nmust serve the District with the original charge, all amendnents
and all other docunents filed in connection with this case.

CRDER

The General Counsel "s.dismssal of the first allegation of the unfair
practice charge, relating to the Dstrict's alleged violation of the
Menor andum of Understanding, filed by Aarence A son agai nst the Mountain
Vi ew School District, is sustained.
The renai nder of the charge is renanded to the General Counsel to
al l owthe charging party, within 30 cal endar days after the filing of this
deci sion, an opportunity to amend the renanded al | egations of the charge
to state a violation or violations of Section 3543.5. The charging party,
within 10 cal endar days after the filing of this decision, may apply pursuant
to 8 California Admnistrative Code Section 35006 for Board assistance in
drafting an anendnent. Wthin five cal endar days after such application
for assistance, the General Counsel shall notify the charging party whet her
or not he is entitled to assistance. The Board agent assisting the charging
party shall obtain an affidavit fromthe charging party which states all
"the facts relevant to the alleged unfair practice and this affidavit shall
be incorporated in the amendment . |

If the charging party anends, the charge; he shall serve the District
with, the original charge, aall anendnents and all other docunents filed in
connection wi th this case.

Any anmendrent, whether drafted with or without the assistance of the
CGeneral Counsel, shall be subject to disnissal by the General Counsel if it
fails to state an unfair practice. |If the charge is not amended within

| Scal '. Adm Code Sec, 35007 provides in pertinent part:

(c) Any party may file a statenent in opposition to the
appeal within ten cal endar days after service of the
appeal of the disnissal.



30 cal endar days after the filing of this decision, the charge shall be
di smssed by the Ceneral Counsel and no appeal may be taken from such
di sm ssal ..

o e (it i Ok

ByE " Rayraoﬁd J. /Je//ilou H Cossack, Menber

Dated: My 17, 1977

Reginal d Al  eyne, Chairman, concurring in part, dissentingin part:

| agree that this individual charging party ought to be given an
opportunity to qualify for Board assistance within the neaning of EERB
Rul e 35006, since that is what the rule provides. | think, though, that
most, if not all, aspects of the charge are incapable of being anended to
state an arguable claimthat the District violated the |aw, and shoul d be
di sm ssed accordingly.

My col | eagues recogni ze the wel | -established | egal concept that sone
witten allegations of a lawviolation are so defective on their face, that
no amendnment may cure the defect. For they correctly sustain, wthout |eave
to amend, the charge alleging a violation of the menorandumof understanding
bet ween t he Association and the District, and the charge that the District
violated "state school |aw' and the federal Constitution. | join the Board
I n sustaining those di sm ssals.

| dissent fromthe majority opinionto the extent that it fails to
treat two other aspects of the charge in the same manner that it treats the
al l eged viol ation of a nenorandumof understanding: (1) the allegation of
this individual charging party that the District unlawfully failed to nego-
tiate in good faith concerning health and wel fare benefits; and (2) the
al legation that the District "failed to adopt a grievance processing proce-
dure pursuant to [CGovernnment Code] Sections 3543.2 and 3543.7."



The Charge O Refusal 1b Negotiate

Heal th and Wel fare Benefits

The refusal -to-negotiate portion of the EERA, Section 3543.5(c)
provi des:

L1, shall be unlawful for a public school enployer to:

(c) Refuse or fail to meet and negotiate in good faith

wi th an exclusive representative.
The exclusive representative with whomthe District is obligated to negotiate,
the Muntain View Teachers Association, has not filed a refusal-to-negotiate
charge against the District.

| know of no precedent in either the private or public sectors which
permts an individual, alone, to successfully maintain a refusal-to-negotiate
charge against an enpl oyer

VWWhen an enpl oyee organi zation becones certified or validly recogni zed
as an exclusive representative, the enployer must, as the term "exclusive
representative" connotes, negotiate in good faithonly with that representative
during the termof the enployee organization as exclusive representative. The
excl usive representative, alone, may formulate the tactics it will enploy at
the negotiating table. [f an enployee organization other than the exclusive
representative may not represent enployees represented by the exclusive
representative, it follows that no individual, acting in a purely individua
capacity, as is this individual charging party, may, in negotiations wth the
enpl oyer, represent those enployees. It follows that no individual enployee,
acting purely in an individual capacity, ought to be able to control the course
of negotiations between the enployer and the exclusive representative.

The refusal -to-negotiate charge may be part of an exclusive representative's
negotiating tactics. The refusal of an exclusive representative to file a
refusal -to-negotiate charge mght also be part of the exclusive representative's
negotiating tactics. |f an exclusive representative does not file a refusal-
to-negotiate charge against an enployer, its interests at the negotiating table
may be inpeded to its detrinent if an individual is allowed to successfully
pursue such a charge and, consequently, to conpete wth the excl usi ve represent a-
tive.



It is true that these events are not likely to occur -unless an agency
or court ultimately finds valid a refusal-to-bargain charge filed by an
i ndi vidual, alone, and issues or approves a cease and desi st order agai nst
the enployer. But that is precisely why this charge shoul d be dismssed -

Wi thout a hearing at this stage of the process. On the assunption that the
facts alleged in this aspect of the charge-are true (including the fact that
the exclusive representative i s not the charging party), then, for policy
reasons going to the core of the collective negotiations process, no violation
of the [awhas been validly alleged.

The majority opinion does not discuss at all the startling inplications
of its decision not to dismss a refusal-to-negotiate charge filed by an
individual, alone. After sustaining the dismssal of the charge in respect
to an alleged viol ation of the memorandumof understanding, and stating the
reasons for that dismssal, ny colleagues only rationale for the decision not
to dismss the refusal-to-negotiate allegation is:

None of the remaining allegations of the charge
state any facts to support the alleged violations....

Li ke the charge alleging a violation of the menmorandumof understanding,
whi ch stands dismssed, | believe that no facts alleged by the charging party
can cure the defect inherent in this individual's charge of refusal to negotiate.
| woul d accordingly dismss this portion of the charge.l

llThe excl usive representative coul d become a party to the refusal-to-
negotiate charge, but not by an anendment of the charge by the present individua
charg|ng party. To become a party to the charge, the exclusive representative
woul d have to affirmatively file a signed refusal -to-negotiate charge against the
District and apply for joinder under EERB Rul e 35016, or pursue a separate charge
against the District. |f, inconjunctionwth that possibility, the charging
party qualifies: for Board assistance under EERB Rul e 35006, follow ng the remand
of this case to the General Counsel, the Board's inage as a neutral decision-maker
indisputes arising under the EERAwW ||, inny judgment, be inperiled, if "Board
assi stance" means that the Board agent assisting the charging party will advise
the charging party to encouragf the exclusive representative to file a refusal-to-
negotiate charge a?a|nst the District. | would be |ess troubled by that prospect,
if | could think of anything short of joinder by the exclusive representative to
make this individual's refusal-to-negotiate charge validinits face.



The "G ievance Processing Procedure”

The individual charging party's allegation that the District violated
the EERA by failing "to adopt a grievance processing procedure pursuant to

" Sections 3543.2 and 3543.7" of the EERA is al so a refusal —+0-negoti ate al | ega- -

tion by an individual, alone. The EERA sections relied upon by the charging
party state that a grievance-arbitration procedure is a negotiable subject

wi thin the meaning of the EERA  Therefore, even though this aspect of the
charge is not expressly characterized as a refusal -to-negotiate charge, the
charging party's allegationis, inthis respect, essentially a conplaint that
the enpl oyer and the exclusive representative did not negotiate and reach an
agreenent containing a grievance-arbitration clause. Accordingly, for the
sane reasons expressed earlier, this aspect of the charge shoul d be di sm ssed
on the ground that it was not filed by the exclusive representative.

More so than the individual's charge of refusal to negotiate in respect
to health and wel fare benefits, the charge that the enployer "has failed to
adopt a grievance processing procedure” is illustrative of the potential for
di sruption of the negotiations process if both the exclusive representative
and an individual are permtted to sinultaneously foster and inplenment nego-
tiating table strategy and tactics.

As a matter of sound and valid negotiating tactics, a union may open
negotiations by insisting on a grievance-arbitration clause, anmong other things,
even though the union may not really want a grievance-arbitration clause. The
uni on may prefer to make the enployer think that it wants a grievance-arbitration
clause and then, at alater stage in the bargaining process, trade off the
arbitration demand for a larger increase in economc benefits. Thisis a
legitimte bargaining tactic. Yet, if inthe interim an individual enployee
were able to convince a board |ike the EERB that the enployer unlawful |y refused
to bargain in good faith on failing to include a grievance-arbitration clause
inthe agreenent, the union's interests and the individual charging party's
interests would collide, tothe detriment of those elenents of give-and-take
and accommodat i on that are the foundation of the bargaining process.

-10-



Li ke t he menorandumof understandi ng i ssue, which. stands di sm ssed, and
the refusal -to-negotiate charge on heal th and wel fare benefits, which should
be di smssed, no conceivabl e facts can rmake thi s aspect of the charge valid,
as filed by an individual and not by the exclusive representative. | would
accordingly dismss this aspect of the charge.

‘The Affidavit "‘Requirenent
In the Board' s O der

| further dissent fromthe Board' s order to the'eXtent that it requires
t he Board agent assisting the charging party (should the charging party qualify
for assistance) to "obtain an affidavit fromthe charging party which states
all the facts relevant to the alleged unfair practice and this affidavit shal
be incorporated in the amendrent. "

Affidavits are ordinarily taken by advocates for the general purpose
of preserving evidence to be used in litigation, and to supply the facts in
support of a position taken in a pleading, all to support the advocates'
contentions. EERB hearing officers hear and deci de representation and unfair
practice cases; they are not advocates for charging parties or respondents.

| fail to see how, when an EERB agent takes an affidavit froma charging party,
2

the EERB's rol e of neutral decision-naker can be mai ntai ned.

To the extent that the new affidavi t-taki'ng procedure announced in today's
decision i s neant to be nodel ed after the National Labor Rel ations Board practice,
the attenpted anal ogy wi |l not withstand cl ose analysis. The NLRB itself, I|ike
the EERB, is aneutral agency. But there the parallel ends. By act of Congress,
the NLRB is separated fromits General Counsel, who is independent|y appoi nted

AThe taking of a charging party's affidavit differs naterially fromthe
Board agent's power, as stated in EERB Rul e 35005(b) to "assist the charging
party to state in proper formthe infornmation required by [EERB Rule] 35004...."
The difference i s one between "fornm¥, as used in EERB Rul e 35005(b), and the
substantive matters ordinarily placed in an affidavit to support a party's
position.
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by the President of the United States and independent|y confirmed by the
United States Senate. The NLRB General Counsel's chief functionis to
investigate unfair practice charges through a staff in regional offices
t hroughout the United States, in order to. decide which of those charges to
prosecute before admnistrative |aw judges-of the NLRB and on appeal to the
NLRB itself and in the courts, those charges found to be meritorious and
whi ch do not settle.3 The NLRB itself does not prosecute unfair practice
cases, but only decides unfair practice cases. The NLRB CGeneral Counse
does not decide unfair practice cases, as does the Ceneral Counsel of the
EERB at the hearing officer |evel

I'n conducting the investigation |eading to the decision to prosecute
or not to prosecute, the NLRB General Counsel's representatives inthe field,
among ot her things, take affidavits fromparties in unfair practice cases.
These are used to conplete the investigation file and may be used by the
General Counsel's attorneys in the unfair practice prosecutions conducted

before Admnistrative Law Judges.  The Adm nistrative Law Judges before

Section 3(d) of the National Labor Relations Act, 29 U.S.C. 153 (d)
provides in part:

There shall be a General Counsel of the Board who shall be
appoi nted by the President, by and with the advice and .
consent of the Senate, for atermof four years. The
General Counsel of the Board shall exercise general super-
vision over all attorneys enployed by the Board (other

than trial examners and | egal assistants to Board nmenbers)
and over the officers and enpl oyees in the regional offices.
He shal | have final authority, on behalf of the Board, in
respect of the investigation of charges and issuance of
conpl ai nts under section 10, and in respect of the prosecu-
tion of such conplaints before The Board, and shall have
SUCR ot her duties as t{he Board may prescribe or as nay be
provided by |aw.  [Enphasis added. ]

4The NLRB's internal Pol|0|es governing the use of affidavits is contained
I n NLRB Case-Handl i ng Manual Section 10394.6, governing the use of statenents or
affidavits during Iitigation, and Section 10058.2 describing the procedure for
taMngmeMWtsdw1w2m|mmM|auon These provisions illustrate the
conpl ex nature of the affidavit-taking Erocedure and its inportance as a tool

for an advocate during the course of a hearing. A fewshort quotes fromthe
NLRB's manual are-illustrative. Section 10058.2 of the NLRB Case-Handling Manua
provides in part:

The keystone of the investigation is the affidavit.
Every effort shoul d be nade to reduce statenents of
wi tnesses, friendly or hostile, to affidavit form
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whomunfair practice litigation is conductéd, only hear and decide unfair
practice cases.

The EERA does not provide for a separate investigatory-prosecutorial
armwi thin the EERB structure, and it seens clear that the Legislature did
not intend to create one. |f the Legislature had so intended, it would very
likely have made known its intent by, anong other things, providing for the
sane kind of separation of the decision-naking and prosecutorial roles that
Is found in the National Labor Relations Act. Also, the prospect of one
agency of government (EERB) acting as on-going prosecutor of another agency
of governnent (school boards), is so unique and unusual that one may not
assume the prosecutorial function in the absence of a clear |egislative intent.

The affidavit requirenent, as set out inthe Board s order, is inappro-
priate for another reason. The hearing officer dismssed the charge because
it failedonits faceto state aviolation of the EERA At that stage of the
case, the only issue then before the hearing officer, and the only issue now
before the Board, is the validity of the charge on its face, unsupported by
docunents extrinsic to the charge, like affidavits. |f we extend to charging
parties, individual or otherwise, the right to support their charges with
affidavits, we alter the whole nature of our pleading requirements, which up
until now have been relatively sinple.

(cont i nued)
Section 10394.6 of the NLRB Case- Handl i ng Manual provides in part:

The affidavit—er, inits absence, the unsworn statement—
Is highly inportant. [t can.be used in advance of a

wi tness taking the stand, as a basis for questioning.

It can be given himwhile he is on the stand if his nmenory
has failed and he says that it may refresh his menory.

Section 10394.7 of the NLRB Case-Handling -Manual describes the circunstances
under which an affidavit in the possession of the Ceneral Counsel nust be
produced and given to an adversary of the General Counsel during litigation,
for use in cross-examning a General Counsel"s witness. This sensitive aspect
of litigation has given rise to a series of court decisions on the subject of
the circunstances under which such a statenment nust be produced. See,
general |y, Alleyne, The "Jencks Rule" in NLRB proceedings, 9 Boston Col | ege
I'ndustrial and ConmerCral” Law REvi ew, 891 (1968). under the affidavit-taking
procedure announced in today'-s EERB deci sion, the same General Counsel, or

one of his agents, who prepared the affidavit for the charging party, my have
toruleonits production at the request of another party.
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|'f a charging party nay support a charge with an affidavit, a respondent,
in fairness, may support an answer with an affidavit; and if a single affidavit
Is permtted any party, any party nay file as many affidavits and counter
affidavits in support of the charge and answer, respectively as they desire.
(Even if charging party is limtedto a single affidavit, it may take any
number of affidavits fromdifferent individuals to support the respondent's
case.) Up until now, we have dismssed charges failing to state a violation
of the EERA on the face of the charge alone; in all other cases, where a
violation of the lawis alleged on the face of the charge, alone, a charging
party is entitled to a hearing if the charging party desires a hearing, and
the case is not settled to the nutual satisfaction of both parties. 5 Today' s
action of the Board converts the procedure of determning the validity of a
charge on its face to the nore conplex summary judgnent practice used in civi
Iitigation,6 where a case may be deci ded on the basis of pleadings, affidavits
and ot her documents if they reveal no triable issue of fact and only a question
of lawthat may be decided without a trial. Wether to establish a separate
sunmary judgnent procedure is at |east debatable; to convert a procedure to
test the validity of a charge on its face, to a summary judgment procedure,
through a decision, is unwarranted

SEERB Rul e 35017 provides for an informal conference by a Board agent
"for the purpose of clarifying the issues and exploring the possibility of
vol untary resol ution and settlement of the case." Aporoxinatelg 40 percent
of the unfair ﬁractlce charges so far filed with the EERB have been settled
and cl osed wi thout the need for a formal hear|n% O the remaining unfair
practice charges, approximtely 40 percent of those are at various stages of
pl eadi ng or have been hel d in abeyance at the request of the parties, and
are not yet ready for a hear|n% I't is not an unlikely possibility that nost
of these cases mnll settle without the need for a hearing.

6See Cal. Code of Gvil Procedure 437(c), and, generally, Wtkin, Calif.
Procedure 2829-2846.
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The problem is compounded by the requirement in the Board's order
that the affidavit of the charging party will be taken by an agent of the
EERB, assuming the charging party qualifies for Board assistance. I think
that elevates to a higher level, the right of the respondent to file affidavits
with its answer. It will confuse the role of advocate and decision-maker
and heighten tensions between the EERB and respondents, since it will be known
that the nonneutral role of preparing a charging party's affidavit was played
by the EERB.’

Reginald Alleyne, Chairman /

'In the absence of service of the appeal on the District, it is one
matter for the EERB to sustain the dismissal; it is another matter for the
EERB to make a finding adverse to the District without providing the District
an opportunity to respond to the appeal from the hearing officer's dismissal.
Should the District respond to the charging party's appeal after receiving
this EERB decision and order, I believe that this decision and order may not,
as it would ordinarily, stand as having concluded these issues against the
District.
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